
CITY OF CLAREMONT  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Regular Meeting  
August 1, 2016 

7:00 PM 
Claremont City Hall 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
3. INVOCATION- Councilman David Morrow 

 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE- Councilman Timothy Lowrance 

  
5. MAYOR’S REPORT  

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA    

A. Regular Meeting Minutes –July 11, 2016 
B. Closed Session Meeting Minutes- July 11, 2016 
C. Call for a Public Hearing- Economic Development Agreement 

 
7. CITIZEN’S CONCERNS AND COMMENTS 

 
8. OLD BUSINESS 

 
9.  NEW BUSINESS 

        A. Wooten Company- Standard Specifications 
        B. Ordinance 01-16 Budget Amendment- Prysmian Building Reuse Grant 
        C. Ordinance 02-16 Budget Amendment- Emergency Waterline Repairs 
             
10. DEPARTMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 

  A. Department Dashboard Report  
  B. Code Enforcement Report 
  C. Recreation Committee Report 
 

11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
12. CLOSED SESSION 
      A. 143.318-11(3) Attorney Client Privilege 
                     
13. ADJOURN  



EXHIBIT 6 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: August 1, 2016 
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Wendy Helms, City Clerk  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Consent Agenda 
 
A. Regular Session Minutes –July 11, 2016 
 
B. Closed Session Minutes- July 11, 2016 
 
C. Call for Public Hearing-A public hearing is needed before Council can enter into an 
economic development agreement with DAE Systems as permitted by the provisions of 
N.C.G.S. § 158-7.1. The public is encouraged to give input on this agreement.  
 
This action calls for the public hearing on September 6, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: Approve as Presented    

 
 
 



   

Monday, July 11, 2016                                 Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 1 of 3 

 
City of Claremont Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday, July 11, 2016 
 
The regular City Council meeting of the City of Claremont was held in the Council Chambers located at  
Claremont City Hall at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, July 11, 2016. 
 
The following members of the Claremont City Council were present: Mayor Shawn Brown, 
Councilmember Timothy Lowrance, Councilmember Dale Sherrill, Councilmember Lee Miller, 
Councilmember Dayne Miller and Councilmember David Morrow.   
 
The following personnel of the City of Claremont were present: City Manager Catherine Renbarger, 
City Clerk Wendy Helms, Police Chief Gary Bost, Fire Chief Bart Travis, Public Services Supervisor 
Bo Prince, Captain Allen Long, Recreation Coordinator Michael Orders, City Planner Elinor Hiltz and 
City Attorney Bob Grant. 
 
Others in attendance were: Mark Stafford, Dana Stafford, David Pruitt, Wayne Isenhour, Bradford 
Johnson, Peter Weinrich, Brenda Stanley, Dennis Richards, Jacob Christenbury, Maggie Christenbury, 
Lillie Christenbury, Leanne Christenbury, Jimmy Christenbury, Ron Lancaster, Les Morrow, George 
Setzer, Jerry Sherrill, Ricky Ruvio, Julie Pruett, Robert Smith, Sindie Christenbury, Jim Christenbury, 
Scott Millar, Gene Monday and Jonathan Miller. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Shawn R. Brown called the Claremont City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
  The agenda was then approved as presented. 
 
 
3& 4. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The invocation was given by Reverend Dennis Richards from Claremont First Baptist Church.  
Councilmember David Morrow led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 
5. MAYOR’S REPORT & PRESENTATIONS 
 
Mayor Brown acknowledged a thank you note from BHHS Hope 4 a Cure.  He also read a letter from 
Reverend Dennis Richards and his wife, thanking Bo Prince for his help during a water emergency at 



   

Monday, July 11, 2016                                 Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 2 of 3 

their home. 
 
Fire Chief Bart Travis presented David Pruitt and Peter Weinrich, from the Catawba County Firefighter 
Museum, with a check from the proceeds of the annual pancake breakfast.  The annual pancake 
breakfast was in honor of Rupert Little.   
 
Brenda Stanley and Mayor Brown presented the PJ Stanley Scholarships to Mark Stafford and Jacob 
Christenbury.  Each recipient received a $1,000 scholarship to further their education. 
 
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. June 6, 2016, Regular Meeting Minutes – Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a motion to 
accept June 6, 2016 regular meeting minutes as presented. Councilmember David Morrow seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
B. June 6, 2016 Closed Session Minutes – Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a motion to accept 
the closed session minutes, from June 6, 2016, as presented.  Councilmember David Morrow seconded 
the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
7. CITIZEN’S CONCERNS & COMMENTS- Jonathan Miller spoke briefly about his house on 
Oak Street.  Mr. Miller received a letter from the City from the Planning and Zoning Department.  He 
assured Council he was working on finishing the house.  Mayor Brown asked him to stay in contact with 
Elinor Hiltz about the progress on this project. 
 
 
8.  OLD BUSINESS-  
 
A. Budget Transfer- Transfer of funds was made to align line items to expenditures for the FY 2015-
2016 budget.  Informational only. 
 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS-  
 
A. Contract with Sigmon Family Farms- Last year the City approved an agreement with Kemp and 
Christy Sigmon to allow the City to dump grass clippings, trees, tree limbs, and similar vegetative waste 
on the Sigmon’s property. Previously there had been an informal arrangement with Sigmon Farms to 
dump tree trimmings, limbs, and stumps at 2385 Island Ford Road. This agreement continues that 
relationship and is beneficial to the City as it saves us the time and fuel costs of taking the yard waste to 
Blackburn Landfill. Under the terms of this agreement, the City will pay Sigmon Farms $5,000 annually 
for the dumping of yard waste on their property.  
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Dale Sherrill to approve the agreement with Sigmon Family 
Farms.  Second was made by Councilmember Timothy Lowrance.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
B. Resolution 01-16 Appointment to the Planning Board- The Planning Board is requesting a member 
be appointed to fill the unexpired term of Jack Ledford, who served as an alternate. The term will expire 
03/01/2017.  Ron Lancaster has completed an application and agreed to serve. 
 
Motion was made by Councilmember David Morrow to appoint Ron Lancaster as an alternate to the 



   

Monday, July 11, 2016                                 Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 3 of 3 

Planning Board.  Second was made by Councilmember Lee Miller.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
10. DEPARTMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
A.  Monthly Department Dashboard Report- The dashboard report was accepted as presented. 
 
Fire- Chief Travis advised Council that new SCBA have been placed on the trucks.  He also spoke about 
Legislation which passed on July 1st, which will change personnel needs on some fire calls. 
 
Recreation- Movie night was a hit.  Another movie night will be planned as the weather cools.  Touch a 
Truck will be held on July 23rd.  The Recreation Committee has begun to finalize bands for Claremont 
Daze. 
 
11. CITY MANAGER REPORT – City Manager Renbarger informed Council that the Catawba 
County Historical Society has a display set up honoring Claremont.  They also expressed their thanks to 
Claremont for their help at the Bunker Hill Covered Bridge. 
 
 
12. CLOSED SESSION- Motion was made by Councilmember Dayne Miller to go into closed 
session at 7:27 p.m. Second was made by Councilmember Lee Miller.  Motion passed unanimously. The 
closed session was recessed at 7:58 p.m. 
 
City Manager Renbarger gave Council an update on the Centennial Blvd Ext.  Matthews Construction 
has presented a change order on the project. 
 
Ms. Renbarger also asked Council for direction on the entrance to the Library and awnings for the book 
walk plaques.   
 
 13. ADJOURN 
With no further business of the board motion was made by Councilmember Dayne Miller to adjourn the 
meeting at 8:15 p.m.  Second was made by Councilmember Dale Sherrill.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Wendy L. Helms, City Clerk 
        
 
 
____________________________    
Shawn R. Brown, Mayor       
 
 
Attested: 
 
____________________________ 
Wendy L. Helms, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT 7 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: August 1, 2016 
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Citizen Concerns 
 
Open the floor for comments or questions from the audience. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Recommendation: No action needed    

 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT 9A 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: August 1, 2016     
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Approve Contract with The Wooten Company for Engineering 
Services Related to Development of Standard Specifications  
 
As discussed during the FY 2016-2017 budget process, this contract provides for the 
development of standard specifications and details for water, sewer, roadways and storm 
drainage systems for use by the City of Claremont and anyone that desires to construct 
or perform any improvements within the City’s jurisdiction. These design specifications 
will greatly assist developers as well as the City in the planning and review process.  
Cost of completing this work is $24,000 and is included in the FY 2016-2017 budget.  
The contract calls for the completion of these services by September 15, 2016.  
 
 
 
Recommendation: Motion to Approve Agreement with The Wooten Company for 
Development of Standard Specifications  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



























EXHIBIT 9B 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: August 1, 2016     
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Approve Ordinance  1-16 Amending FY2016-2017 Budget  
 
In late 2014, the Council granted the authority for the City to apply for a NC 
Department Building Reuse Grant for Prysmian Cables and Systems USA. In early 
2015, the City was officially awarded the $240,000 grant. In June, the City transferred 
$160,000 from the NC Department of Commerce to Prysmian. 
 
Prysmian has now met the final requirements of the grant and additional money is ready 
to be disbursed.  This ordinance amends the budget to account for the $80,000 the City 
will receive from the NC Department of Commerce and then grant to Prysmian.  
 
 
Recommendation: Motion to Approve Ordinance 1-16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council of the City of Claremont  

Catawba County, North Carolina  

Ordinance No. 1-16 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT AMENDING CLAREMONT  
MUNICIPAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS:  

General Fund 
   Increase Decrease 
Revenues     
NC Commerce Grant     
10.3480.0501    $80,000  
Total    $80,000  
     
Expenditures   
Economic Dev Grant    
10.8200.8900   $80,000  
Total   $80,000  

 
 
INTRODUCED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on August 
1, 2016.  
 
ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on  
August 1, 2016. 

 
 
_______________________, 
MAYOR Shawn R. Brown  

ATTEST:  
 
____________________________  
Wendy Helms, City Clerk  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
__________________________ 
Bob Grant, City Attorney  
 



EXHIBIT 9C 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: August 1, 2016     
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Approve Ordinance  2-16 Amending FY2016-2017 Budget  
 
This budget amendment appropriates $15,000 of fund balance in the Water & Sewer 
Fund to account for unexpected emergency costs related to the July 27 waterline break.  
While the exact costs of the repair are not yet known, this should cover the costs and 
provide a small buffer if we were to have another expense related to the break.  
 
Additional information on the break will be provided during the City Council meeting. 
 
 
Recommendation: Motion to Approve Ordinance 2-16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council of the City of Claremont  

Catawba County, North Carolina  

Ordinance No. 2-16 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT AMENDING CLAREMONT  
MUNICIPAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS:  

Water & Sewer Fund 
   Increase Decrease 
Revenues     
Appropriated Fund Balance     
30.3990.0000    $15,000  
Total    $15,000  
     
Expenditures   
Water Maintenance Capital Outlay    
30.8150.7400   $15,000  
Total   $15,000  

 
 
INTRODUCED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on August 
1, 2016.  
 
ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on  
August 1, 2016. 

 
 
_______________________, 
MAYOR Shawn R. Brown  

ATTEST:  
 
____________________________  
Wendy Helms, City Clerk  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
__________________________ 
Bob Grant, City Attorney  
 



Month YTD Month YTD % In % Out 
610 4067 Calls for Service 54 220 0% 8%
165 907 Working Fires 5 21 9% 5%
61 415 Training Hours 189 1777
12 84 Prevention Programs 27 146
9 84 Structural Responses 24 57 Month YTD 

38 175 11 56 Calls for Service 358
Open Cases 16 48 Training Hours 255
Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements 

Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD 
Vehicles Serviced 8 92 Water Turned Off 23 87 Total Zoning Permits 2 14
Recycling Tons- May 2016 13.03 46.94 Water Taps 1 2 Commercial Projects 1 2
Solid Waste Tonnage 61.19 214.16 Water Purchased 48,149,133 New Dwelling Units 1 7
Street Lights Replaced 8 62 Water Sold 43,777,970 Customers w/ Inquiries 9 87
Work Orders 42 221 McLin  WWTP Avg. 478,900 New Plats Reviewed 0 3

1814+6 12369 FT. (52) North WWTP Avg. 371,000 Plng Brd Agenda Items 0 18
Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements 

Warrants EMS Calls 

Rescue Squad 

Public Works Utility Dept. Planning & Zoning Dept.

Accidents 

Department approved 4 new Driver Operators. CFD will host 
community day on Sept 10th.  Members will be attending 

NCSFA annual conference.

Officers made 4 DWI arrest this month.  Several citizens 
and the Youth Council brought cookies, cakes, candy 
and food to the PD to thank the officers.

Claremont July 2016 Dashboard Report 

Calls Answered 

Citations Served 

Warnings 

Number of Arrests 

 Police Dept. Fire Dept. Financials 

General Fund 

Water/Sewer Fund 

Working on storm drain ditch line in the City.
Installed a 2" water tap at 3000 Frazier Drive.  Public 
Services will begin smoke testing of the sewer lines in 

August.

Further prepared Matlock's Auto Salvage staff report but 
then application was withdrawn July 22.  There have been 
inquiries to develop property adjacent to Dollar General.

No Report

Sewer Line Jetted/ Manholes 



Code Enforcement Report
August, 2016

last updated Jul 20,2016: Elinor Hiltz

Property Owner Property Address Issue Status

Jonathan Miller 3060 Oak St unfinished house owner is continuing to work on the house. check back in a month: Aug 20

Janice Salyers 2730 E US Hwy 70
outdoor storage-Tim's 
Towing

sending another $50 citation announcing that the $50-per-day fines start on July 25

Pierre Foods 3437 E Main St missing buffer
met with 3 plant managers and homeowner on July 25. managers agreed to submit site plan showing proposed new tree 
buffer. suggested buffer is two rows of trees along property line, starting at corner of house. will get planted in early October.

Richard Shook 3092 Catawba St sight triangle obstruction sending notice of violation with Aug 20 deadline

Elizabeth Murray & Mitzi 
Yount

000 Yount St high grass
on July 19 said she wants City to mow it and mail her a bill but then the trees fell. Planner left a message that owner should 
look at the trees and let the City know if she will remove them. did not receive a call back so will proceed with the mowing.

Oxford Crossing 2985 Oxford Way
storage building not in 
accordance with site plan

meeting with manager of Wilhoit Properties on Aug 3

Catawba Properties LLC 2675 Bethlehem Dr high grass case closed. owner mowed grass

Carpenter Realty 2985 Peachtree St Ext high grass owner will mow approximately Aug 5 per July 25 conversation

Stanford Furniture 2860 N Oxford St van without tags sending notice of violation with Aug 20 deadline



 

July 12th Recreation Meeting Minutes 

Attendees: Michael Orders, Danny Hedrick, Kendra Hedrick, Henry Helton 

 

• Danny Called the meeting to order 
• Michael informed the committee that Bennett Funeral Home and Lamar billboards have been 

contacted about advertising this year.  
• Henry had a question about the Flag book advertising in the minutes. 
• Kendra made a motion to approve the June meeting minutes, Henry seconded. 
• The 4th of July event was discussed. Danny noted that there were about 75 to 100 people at the 

July event and that with a different band and inflatables in the shade, the event could be much 
bigger next year. 

• Kendra suggested that the event be moved to later on in the day. This would help with the heat. 
• Henry suggested a 4th of July baby buggy parade around the track at the park for the event. 
• The committee discussed touch-a-Truck. Henry suggested contacting CVMC about the infant 

ambulance. Henry also stated he had talked to a NASCAR official about bring a truck to the 
event. Danny also talked to Dale Earnhardt Chevy about bringing a car. 

• Kendra asked about the Pink fire truck. Darlene Huffman was contacted and had another event 
that day and is not able to come. 

• The committee discussed getting T-shirts for events. Danny noted he would buy some shirts. 
Michael said he would talk to ASR and discuss our options. 

• Claremont Daze was discussed and Danny noted that we should look for some younger kids to 
fill some spots instead of a bigger band like Mike Sherrill. Michael agreed that we should try and 
get some younger kids from the community. 

• Danny said he would contact Roger who has some contacts for younger talent in the 
community. 

• The committee discussed the date for Christmas Parade (December 3rd) and Senior Citizens 
Dinner (December 9th) times will be discussed at a later time. 

• Henry noted that he was going to write a letter to the Art council for free  advertising on the 
back of the monthly  newsletter 

• Danny asked about the City’s insurance company being a sponsor for Claremont Daze. 



• Henry stated he had a meeting with the preachers in the community. Possibly holding a service 
in the city hall parking lot. He also asked if committee could use the Council Chambers Thursday 
July 28th for a CPR class. 

• The Committee asked if we were doing the Bunker Hill pep rally this year. Michael stated that he 
would talk to Catherine and Shawn to get their thoughts. 

• Danny moved to close the meeting and Henry second. 
 
. 

 

 


	1-AGENDA
	2-RFBA Consent Agenda
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	3-July 11, 2016 Regular
	10-RFBA Citizen Comments
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	20-RFCA- Standard Specifications
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	21-Wooten Contract
	30-RFCA Prysmian Budget Action
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	31- ORD 01-26 Building Reuse Prysmian Budget Amendment
	50-rfca- EmergencyBudgetOrdinance
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	51- Ord 02-16 EmergencyWaterLineBudgetAmendment
	60-Dashboard Report copy
	Sheet1
	Sheet2

	70-code enforcement report 8-16
	Sheet1

	80-July 12th Recreation Meeting Minutes

